

# The Corporation of the Town of Grand Valley

# **Council Meeting Minutes**

Tuesday, May 13, 2025, 6:00 pm Council Chambers, 5 Main Street North, Grand Valley

Council Present:	Mayor Steve Soloman Deputy Mayor Philip Rentsch Councillor James Jonker Councillor Paul Latam
Council Absent:	Councillor Lorne Dart
Staff Present:	Meghan Townsend, Chief Administrative Officer/Clerk Matthew Bos, Director Public Works Mark Kluge, Town Planner Steven Krepps, Planning and Office Coordinator Donna Tremblay, Deputy Clerk/Communications Coordinator
Others Present:	Justin Foreman, Grand Valley, Fire Chief

# 1. Call to Order and Roll Call

Mayor Soloman called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

Mayor Soloman announced that the meeting is being live streamed and publicly broadcast with the recording of the meeting to be available on the Town's website.

### 2. Adoption of Agenda

#### Resolution: 2025-05-01

Moved by: P. Latam Seconded by: J. Jonker

**BE IT RESOLVED THAT** Council adopts the Regular Council Meeting agenda and any addendums dated Tuesday, May 13, 2025 as circulated/amended.

CARRIED

3. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and the General Nature Thereof

No pecuniary interest was declared.

# 4. Closed Meeting

There was no closed meeting.

5. Open Meeting - 6:00 p.m.

## 6. Rise and Report

There was no rise and report.

## 7. Approval of Previous Minutes

#### Resolution: 2025-05-02

Moved by: J. Jonker Seconded by: P. Latam

**BE IT RESOLVED THAT** the minutes of the April 22, 2025, Regular Council Meeting be approved as circulated/amended.

CARRIED

## 8. Announcements

8.1 40th Anniversary of the Grand Valley Tornado - Commemoration Event -Grand Valley and District Community Centre, Saturday, May 31, 2025

Mayor Soloman advised a commemorative event for the 40th Anniversary of the Grand Valley Tornado will be held on Saturday, May 31st. The event begins at 2:30 p.m. with a processional along Main Street to the community centre with guest speakers, displays and refreshments from 3:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.

#### 9. Deputations/Presentations

#### Resolution: 2025-05-05

Moved by: P. Latam Seconded by: J. Jonker

**BE IT RESOLVED THAT** leave be given to Michele Goulding, to address Council.

#### CARRIED

9.1 6:30 p.m. Michele Goulding - Fee Waiver Request - Ball Diamond Rentals
- Pink It Out Baseball Tournament Fundraising Event - Kelly Shires Breast
Cancer Foundation - June 7, 2025

Michele Goulding appeared before Council to request a ball diamond fee waiver for the June 7, 2025 Pink It Out cancer fundraising baseball tournament.

Council discussed the request with questions regarding the Kelly Shires Breast Canada Foundation and the Town's fee waiver policy.

### **Resolution: 2025-05-06**

Moved by: P. Latam Seconded by: J. Jonker

**BE IT RESOLVED THAT** Council receives the deputation from Michele Goulding from the "Pink It Out", baseball tournament.

**AND FURTHER THAT** Council declines the request for a fee waiver.

**AND FURTHER THAT** staff be directed to prepare a policy for fee waivers for ball diamonds.

CARRIED

# 10. Public Questions

10.1 Wafik Herte- Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry - Sunday Gun Hunting - Request for Resolution

Council discussed Wafik Herte's public question regarding Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry - Sunday Gun Hunting - Request for Resolution.

# Resolution: 2025-05-03

Moved by: P. Latam Seconded by: J. Jonker

**BE IT RESOLVED THAT** Council receives the public question from Wafik Herte.

AND FURTHER THAT staff be directed to bring back a report.

CARRIED

# 11. Unfinished Business

There was no unfinished business.

# 12. Staff Reports

- 12.1 CAO/Clerk
  - 12.1.1 Agreement for Community Centre Expansion costs, 2025-080

# Resolution: 2025-05-07

Moved by: J. Jonker Seconded by: P. Latam **BE IT RESOLVED THAT** Council receives Report – Agreement for Community Centre Expansion costs,

**AND FURTHER THAT** Council approves the draft agreement as presented,

**AND FURTHER THAT** Council directs the CAO to send the draft agreement to Amaranth and East Garafraxa Councils for their consideration, as recommended,

**AND FURTHER THAT** Council directs staff to apply for a loan through Infrastructure Ontario for the project, while continuing efforts obtain alternate funding.

CARRIED

12.1.2 Grand Valley Medical Dental Board Dissolution, 2025-079

#### Resolution: 2025-05-08

Moved by: J. Jonker Seconded by: P. Latam

**BE IT RESOLVED THAT** Council receives Report – Grand Valley Medical Dental Board Dissolution

**AND FURTHER THAT** Council for the Town of Grand Valley agrees with the terms and conditions for dissolution of the Board presented,

**AND FURTHER THAT** Council for the Town of Grand Valley agrees to the termination of the Board effective December 31, 2024, and a waiver of the one-year notice requirement,

**AND FURTHER THAT** Council directs the CAO to send this report to the Townships of Amaranth and East Garafraxa for their consideration and comment.

CARRIED

12.1.3 Fire Services for the Community, 2025-078

Deputy Mayor Rentsch arrived at 6:08 p.m.

CAO Townsend presented the report stating Council direction regarding Town fire service levels was sought for preparation of a Grand Valley Fire Department costing.

Justin Foreman, Grand Valley Fire Chief, attended to answer Council questions regarding fire service training, fire department recruitment and staff retention.

Council discussed fire service levels.

A recorded vote was requested.

#### **Resolution: 2025-05-04**

Moved by: P. Rentsch Seconded by: J. Jonker

**BE IT RESOLVED THAT** Council receives Report – Fire Services for the Community,

**AND FURTHER THAT** Council accepts the Level of Service presented in Table 1 with the addition of surface, ice, flood and swift water rescue at technician level as the Level of Service that would be provided by the Town of Grand Valley if the Board dissolves,

**AND FURTHER THAT** Council directs the CAO to use this Level of Service in developing the requested costing of a Town department, the timeline to disband the fire board by the end of 2025, and a billing model proposal to recoup services fire areas outside the Town of Grand Valley's boundary.

For (3): S. Soloman, P. Rentsch, and J. Jonker

Against (1): P. Latam

Absent (1): L. Dart

CARRIED (3 to 1)

12.1.4 CAO Progress Update, 2025-076

Council discussed the status of 23 Mill Street remediation, Library's deadline to respond to Council's proposed library location, Medical Dental Board leases, Traffic Violation Policy and Automated Speed Enforcement tickets.

#### Resolution: 2025-05-13

Moved by: P. Rentsch Seconded by: J. Jonker

**BE IT RESOLVED THAT** Council receives the Report – CAO Progress update for information purposes.

CARRIED

- 12.2 Director of Public Works
  - 12.2.1 Public Works Update Report April 2025, 2025-084

Matthew Bos, Director of Public Works presented a summary of the report.

Council discussed staff's proposed sign locations and requested an additional sign be purchased for the northern boarder of the Town and staff contact the property owner at Concession 3/4 regarding an agreement to use the current sign location.

## **Resolution: 2025-05-14**

Moved by: P. Latam Seconded by: P. Rentsch

**BE IT RESOLVED THAT** Council receives the Public Works Update Report April 2025 for information purposes.

## CARRIED

- 12.3 Manager of Planning
  - 12.3.1 Monthly Planning Update Report May 2025, 2025-077

Mark Klug, Manger of Planning presented a summary of the report.

Council requested updates on the site plan agreement for Watson Road and ORICA and provision of groundwater spring information relating to the 50 Emma Street application.

#### **Resolution: 2025-05-15**

Moved by: J. Jonker Seconded by: P. Latam

**BE IT RESOLVED THAT** Council receives Report PLN 2025-77 – Monthly Planning Update Report - May 2025, dated May 13, 2025, for information purposes.

#### CARRIED

12.4 Director of Finance/Treasurer

There were no reports.

12.5 By-Law and Property Standards Enforcement

There were no reports.

12.6 Parks and Recreation

There were no reports.

#### 13. Public Meeting - 7:00 p.m.

**Resolution: 2025-05-09** 

Moved by: P. Rentsch Seconded by: P. Latam

**BE IT RESOLVED** THAT Council recess this Regular Meeting of Council at 7:03 p.m. to hold a Public Meeting under sections 17, 26 and 34 of the Planning Act. CARRIED

# 13. Public Meeting - 7:00 p.m.

- 13.1 Grand Valley Official Plan and Zoning By-Law Review (Vision Grand Valley)
  - 13.1.2 VISION Grand Valley Official Plan and Zoning By-law Update, 2025-081

Mayor Soloman requested the Manager of Planning present the report.

Mark Kluge, Manager of Planning presented a summary of the Vision Grand Valley Official Plan and Zoning By-Law update. He advised a Notice of the Public meeting was circulated on April 14, 2025. Public Comments have been received with a summary of comments complied by the Town's consultants. He advised additional comments received from Thomasfield Homes, KLM and the Grand River Conservation Authority have been provided with all comments to be reviewed by staff and the Town's consultants J.R. Richards and addressed in a future recommendation report to Council. He outlined next steps relating to Official Plan Amendment (OPA8) approval process including, Grand Valley Council's approval of the draft Official Plan (OPA 8), Dufferin County's receipt of the draft OPA 8 for approval. He advised the draft Zoning By-Law Amendment would be provided to Grand Valley Council for their approval following the County's approval of OPA 8. He stated no decision regarding OPA8 would be made this evening as the purpose of the public meeting was to gather public and Council comments.

Mayor Soloman thanked Mr. Kluge for his report and requested members of the public who wished to provide comments or questions to come forward and state their name for the record.

There were no comments or questions received from the public.

#### Resolution: 2025-05-11

Moved by: P. Latam Seconded by: J. Jonker

**BE IT RESOLVED THAT** leave be given to Alison Bucking and Marilyn Cameron, Planners, J.L. Richards and Associates, to address Council.

## CARRIED

13.2 Presentation - Alison Bucking and Marilyn Cameron, Planners, J.L. Richards and Associates regarding - Grand Valley Official Plan and Zoning By-Law Review (Vision Grand Valley)

Alison Bucking and Marilyn Cameron, Planners, for the the Town's consultants, J.L. Richards and Associates provided a presentation on the Vision Grand Valley Official Plan and Zoning By-law Review. The presentation included an overview of the project, including project scope, project timeline, public engagement and other consultation, a summary changes resulting from public consultation and a summary of proposed changes to the Official Plan and Zoning regarding growth and settlement, housing, natural features and hazards, agriculture, climate change, employment and other changes relating to policy updates.

Mayor Soloman thanked the J.L. Richardson Planners for their presentation and requested members of the public come forward state their name and present their comments or questions.

13.3 Public Meeting - Questions and Comments

Rob Lavecchia, KLM Planning Partners, Planners for the property owners at 133184 Sideroad 28 and 29 appeared virtually. He advised KLM had provided written comments and was attending to answer questions relating to the written comments.

Mayor Soloman requested questions or comments for Mr. Lavecchia. No questions or comments were provided.

Mayor Soloman requested Council's questions and comments.

Councillor Paul Latam requested clarification regarding permitted as-aright 2 additional residential units where an existing dwelling is located on a lot within the rural and prime agricultural areas subject to criteria as stated in the Background Report - Additional Residential Units (ARUs). J.L. Richards (Consultants) provided clarification that the Provincial Policy Statement 2024 (PPS 2024) speaks specifically to allowing ARU's on prime agricultural land providing it meets criteria and the Planning Act, is the legislation that implements the PPS 2024 and permits 2 additional ARU's as-of-right in the urban area.

Meghan Townsend, CAO/Clerk inquired as to whether the list provided in the background report was from the PPS 2024. Consultants confirmed the list provided was from the PPS 2024 and not the Planning Act.

Councillor Latam inquired as to whether ARUs could be restricted to zones. Consultants advised ARUs are as-of-right in the urban area where municipal services are available. Council Latam sought further clarification as to whether ARUs could be restricted for mixed use. The Town's consultants advised ARUs are tied to residential housing which includes single detached, semi-detached and townhomes in the urban areas where municipal services are available.

Councillor Latam requested clarification as to whether surplus farm dwelling severances, 5 km, on page 28 of the background report required property owners to reside in Grand Valley or ownership of another farm in Grand Valley, to permit a surplus farm dwelling severance. Mark Kluge, Manager of Planning advised that the surplus farm dwellings section was not revised from the current OP and it required ownership. Councillor Latam was not in support of ownership to obtain a surplus farm dwelling severance. He referred to the Dufferin Federation of Agriculture surplus farm dwelling severance sizes and requested surplus farm dwelling severances be permitted to only the smallest lot permitted. Mr. Kluge advised surplus farm dwelling sizes could be reviewed.

Councillor Latam sought clarification on the recommended policy update for permissions for private roads, bulleted item on page 41 of the Background Report. Mark Kluge stated the current OP states private roads are not permissible, however, private roads have been approved and are currently in use in the Town. Mr. Kluge advised the OP update includes the permission of the use of private condo roads.

Councillor Latam inquired as to whether the number of Cannabis retailers could be restricted. Consultant stated restrictions on types of retail uses are not permitted, except for cannabis production facilities where retail could be prohibited or restricted.

Councillor Latam inquired as the reasoning to focus on condos, freehold and townhouses in section 4.9 Lot Creation, in consideration is it a requirement to provide affordable housing. Mr. Kluge advised condos are considered an affordable housing option and ownership. Consultants advised condos reflect lifestyle choices and condos offer services such as snow removal and yard maintenance which reflect owner's lifestyle choices.

Councillor Latam inquired as to the permitted use identified in section 6.13 i) Wayside pits, wayside quarries, portable asphalt plants and portable concrete plants subject to the Aggregate Resources Act in the prime agricultural designation. Consultants stated there are limits on extraction in the PPS 2024 and if there is an option for extraction, it cannot be regulated or restricted under Provincial Legislation. A further review of the legislation would be required on permissions for portable asphalt and concrete plants.

Councillor Latam requested clarification on the meaning of "legal or technical reasons" relating to Severance Policies Section 6.15(d) lot adjustments in prime agricultural areas. Consultants stated legal or technical lot adjustment could include situations where structures were

built on neighbouring property and required a lot line adjustment to incorporate the structure within the lot boundary of the owner.

Councillor Latam inquired as to whether lot line adjustments were included in section 6.15 severance policies. Mr. Kluge stated lot line adjustments are included within this section.

Councillor Latam inquired as to the inclusion of section 6.15 b) *New lots may be permitted for new or existing agriculture-related commercial or industrial uses that are small scale and directly related to the farm operation and are required to be in close proximity to the farm operation, provided that the size of the lot is kept to the minimum required to site the proposed use, and appropriate services and accessory uses.* He stated the section goes against keeping continuity for agricultural uses if permitted through a severance. Consultants advised PPS 2024 permits certain criteria and through policies within the Official Plan, in addition to official plan severance policies, there would be a requirement to meet the agricultural policies of the official plan for it to be permitted.

Councillor Latam suggested including 109 and the Townline corner to the identified areas in section 6.5.1 Gateway Economic Centre - Identification. Mr. Kluge advised gateway policies were not review as they are outside the urban boundary, staff would review this suggestion and report back.

Councillor Latam suggested section 6.74 Prohibited Uses Employment Lands include public works as a prohibited use.

Councillor Latam inquired as to the status of section 6.12.1 Site Specific Policy Area 1 – DEEP (OPA#1). Mr. Kluge advised the policy would need to be reviewed.

Council Latam sought clarification regarding 6.12.8 Site Specific Policy Area 37 – Barn Retention. Mr. Kluge advised further information on this policy would be provided.

Councillor Latam provided suggested wording changes for Section 8.1(h) Municipal Standards "require" traffic calming measures and "prefer" the use of roundabouts.

Councillor Latam inquired as to how the density figure of 44 was achieved. He inquired as to whether 44 was a reasonable figure. He stated his preference was to increase the density figure and preferred using less farmland to reach density targets and a higher density target could assist with meeting density targets. Consultants advised the density target of 44 took considered the lands needs assessment conducted by the County of 32 and to ensure the Town's growth forecast was met and based on feedback received from the Dufferin Federation of Agriculture and public comments which requested more density in the designated greenfield areas and also addressing concerns to development in the existing built up areas, the decision was to not apply the County's density number of 32 and increase density to match the existing Official Plan to 44.

Councillor Latam suggested increasing the density target to 55 so that the Town could meet its density target of 44. Mr. Kluge advised increasing the density target would be considered.

Councillor Latam inquired as how the combination of residential zoning could be used to increase density. Consultants advised the combination of two zones means that the previous multi-residential zone which allowed for apartments and four plexes now applies to the residential category, whereas the previous village residential permitted a lower density, with the combination of the zones it creates greater flexibility and increased density.

Mr. Kluge advised pre-zoning for density would be considered to achieve density targets.

Councillor Jonker expressed concerns that updates to the Official Plan will result in a loss of Grand Valley's small village character. Consultants commented that given Grand Valley's location it will be subject to a large amount of growth, the approach that was taken was to provide flexibility, understanding that growth is going to come, the Official Plan is a balance of meeting provincial and local interests when the growth comes. The plan ensures the Town is in a good position when growth comes and not ensuring there is a balance can be more costly to Grand Valley, as it can have impacts to transportation and the prime agricultural lands.

Councillor Jonker expressed concerns regarding the complexity of the growth mapping and questioned whether cannabis odor is addressed in the plan.

Councillor Jonker expressed concerns regarding the projected growth numbers. He compared projected population growth and jobs to current population, stating this would result in 1,000 current jobs in Grand Valley and questioned how the 25-plus percent job ratio was calculated. He raised concerns regarding affordability of ownership versus housing, stating there is large distinction between affordable housing versus affordable ownership of housing and this did not appear to be addressed in the draft Official Plan.

Councillor Jonker stated a master service plan would need to be addressed before growth can take place. Mr. Kluge advised staff haven engaged the Town's engineers during the Official Plan development and they have advised staff on which documents and plans will require updating to meet growth. Mr. Kluge advised projected population figures differ from those projected by the Ministry of Finance, stating the Ministry of Finance figures are 10 percent higher than those currently projected and Grand Valley could see an increase in their projected population figures once the County of Dufferin's OPA 5 has been approved.

Councillor Jonker stated he was in favor of affordable ownership, preferred home ownerships over rentals and stated, if homes were not affordable, they should not be built in the Town. Mr. Kluge stated rentals serve a purpose and the Town is not permitted to zone based on ownership. He stated if the Town received an application for rental housing, the Town could not refuse the application. Councillor Jonker stated he was in agreement that rentals have a purpose, but did not believe the were in keeping with the character of Grand Valley.

Councillor Jonker sought clarification as to whether the Town would develop criteria for intensification and infill proposals. Consultants advised the official plan has been updated to include the intensification and infill criteria. The new plan contains criteria when considering intensification and infill proposals. Councillor Jonker inquired as to whether there were evaluation criteria. The consultants clarified that the existing official plan did not contain evaluation criteria and the new plan included evaluation criteria.

Councillor Jonker sought clarification from Deputy Mayor Rentsch, an area farmer, as to his interpretation of "regenerative farm practices". Deputy Mayor Rentsch advised his interpretation of the term was to bring livestock back into use.

Councillor Jonker commented on the official plan polices including work from home, on-demand transit and ride-share. Consultants advised these policies are references as the Town could support and not necessarily provide as a town service.

Councillor Jonker requested intersections identified in TMP-2017 transportation road map for upgrades (figure 6) be updated to traffic circles.

Mayor Soloman inquired as to whether other municipalities are being held to the same provincial standard of 24 per hectare. He made reference to a residential subdivision in Waldemar which had large lots with single detached homes. Consultant commented this could be historic or nonprime agricultural lands, with all municipalities being held to provincial density targets and achieving a balanced approach to designated greenfield areas.

Meghan Townsend, CAO/Clerk inquired, if an average of 44/hectare was achieved elsewhere in the Town, could large estate lot subdivisions with single detached homes, like the current Mount Haven subdivision, or subdivisions built around the gravel pit area be permitted in the Town. Mr. Kluge advised large lots like Mount Haven would not be permitted in the agricultural area and would require full municipal services within the urban area. He stated given there are no minimum lots size restrictions, subdivisions like Mount Haven would be permitted in the urban area, with the requirement of full municipal services. Consultants advised compatibility would need to be considered, having high density next to these types of subdivisions would need to be consider, but in theory they could be offered if density targets were achieved in other areas of the Town.

Councillor Jonker inquired as to whether the Town would plan for new aggregate operations in Grand Valley. Consultants advised an Official Plan amendment to add a new extractive mineral operation on the site would be required to meet the established criteria. The Town could not prevent the uses from occurring in accordance with the PPS 2024, but there is criteria that would be applied. Councillor Jonker sought further clarification as to whether they could be prohibited. Mr. Kluge advised they could not be prohibited, but applications for such land uses would be evaluated.

Councillor Jonker inquired as to heritage or conservation areas. Mr. Kluge advised the tornado removed many of the heritage buildings and there is not a lot of heritage stock. He advised heritage designations is a large body of work and sets limitations on property owners which could be perceived as negative. Councillor Jonker inquired as to whether consideration could be given to designating an area of the Town as a heritage area. Mr. Kluge advised heritage is a specialized area of work and assistance of a consultant would be required which is separate from the Official Plan review.

Councillor Latam inquired as to whether the OPA sets standards for cultural provisions to maintain the Town's heritage. Consultants advised the intent of the cultural heritage section is to ensure provincial policy is met.

Councillor Jonker requested an official plan acronym glossary.

Deputy Mayor Rentsch requested adding a financial limit to affordable housing. He was opposed to requirements for electric car parking or bicycle parking. He was in favor of recommending it and developers including it but was opposed to its prescription.

Deputy Mayor Rentsch expressed support of the minimum lot area increases to 40, with a need to have room for natural severances. He requested a reduction in the agricultural 30 meter set back to 5 meters and that setback be either reduce or increase as current farming practices do not accommodate the 30 meters.

Deputy Mayor Rentsch sought confirmation that the County's minimum density target was 32/hectare, and the Town could not go below this target. Staff confirmed this was correct.

Deputy Mayor Rentsch inquired as whether it was a new or existing requirement to consult indigenous groups within 60 meters of the Grand River. Mr. Kluge advised indigenous groups are circulated, consultants advised this was a specific request and is an extension to the set back within the area.

Councillor Latam inquired as to which OPA section spoke to communal and community spaces within developments. Consultants advised the OPA speaks to community lands needs, but it depends upon individual landowners and they would review the definition of community spaces to provide a response.

Mayor Soloman thanked Council for their comments and asked if there were any questions or comments from the public.

Aldo Marascio, a local landowner, stated he has a farm in the south end of the Town. He inquired as to whether he would be permitted to subdivide his land once the new OPA was approved. Mr. Kluge advised subdivision of land would not be permitted, but the new OPA would permit 2 additional residential units on his land with criteria. Mr. Marascio inquired as to whether his daughter would acquire the land if he built her a home on his land. Mr. Kluge advised she would not acquire the land. Mr. Marascio expressed concerns acquiring land was necessary to secure financing. Mr. Kluge advised provincial policy did not permit the subdivision of land. Mr. Marascio inquired as to whether this policy could be change. Mr. Kluge advised the Town could not change the policy and the property could not be subdivided unless through a surplus farm dwelling process.

Deputy Mayor Rentsch inquired as to what would be included in the definition of non-profit housing in consideration of park land dedication. Consultants advised they would review the definition and provide a response.

Mayor Soloman thanked Council, the public and the Town's consultants for their questions and responses.

#### Resolution: 2025-05-11

Moved by: P. Latam Seconded by: J. Jonker

**BE IT RESOLVED THAT** Council reconvene their Regular Meeting at 8:35 p.m.

#### CARRIED

13.4 VISION Grand Valley Official Plan and Zoning By-law Update, 2025-081

Resolution: 2025-05-12

Moved by: P. Rentsch Seconded by: P. Latam

**BE IT RESOLVED THAT** Report No. PLN2025-081, VISION Grand Valley Official Plan and Zoning By-law Update, dated May 13, 2025, be received;

**AND FURTHER THAT** all comments from the public, departments and agencies with respect to the proposed VISION Grand Valley Official Plan Amendment (OPA 8) and Zoning By-law Amendment be received;

**AND FURTHER THAT** the Council directs staff to consider all Council, public, departmental and agency feedback received as part of this statutory public meeting, the public open houses, focus groups, as well as written submissions to inform the finalization of OPA 8, to be provided to Council for approval in the near future.

**AND FURTHER THAT** Council directs that no further public notification is required.

CARRIED

# 14. Pending Items

There were no pending items.

# 15. Correspondence

# Resolution: 2025-05-16

Moved by: P. Rentsch Seconded by: P. Latam

**BE IT RESOLVED THAT** Council receives the correspondence listed on the Tuesday, May 13, 2025, Council Agenda.

CARRIED

# 16. County Council Report

CAO Townsend sought Council's direction on including County Council Highlights on agendas. Council requested they be included.

# 17. Council Updates

Councillor Jonker's updated include his attendance at upcoming Library Board, OPP Detachment Board and Economic Development Committee meetings this week.

Councillor Latam's updated included his attendance at the Community Centre Board meeting on May 11th and the upcoming Fire Board meeting scheduled for May 28th. Deputy Mayor Rentsch's updated included he will be attending at the May 24th Lion's Club Duck Day.

Mayor Soloman's update included his attendance at the Garden Club meeting, Town clean-up, Jim Shaw bench dedication, first pitch of new baseball league and the Grade 5 Civics Class.

### **18.** Boards and Committees

### Resolution: 2025-05-17

Moved by: J. Jonker Seconded by: P. Rentsch

**BE IT RESOLVED THAT** Council receives the Board and Committee Minutes listed on the Tuesday, May 13, 2025, Council Agenda.

CARRIED

#### 19. New Business

There was no new business.

#### 20. Notice of Motion

There were no Notices of Motion.

#### 21. By-laws

There were no by-laws.

#### 22. Confirm Proceedings

#### **Resolution: 2025-05-18**

Moved by: J. Jonker Seconded by: P. Latam

**BE IT RESOLVED THAT** leave be given to introduce a by-law to confirm the proceedings of the Regular Council Meeting held on Tuesday, May 13, 2025 and that it be given the necessary readings and be passed and numbered as By-Law 2025-30.

CARRIED

# 23. Adjournment

## Resolution: 2025-05-19

Moved by: P. Rentsch Seconded by: P. Latam **BE IT RESOLVED THAT** we do now adjourn this Regular Council Meeting at 9:19 p.m. to meet again for a Regular Council Meeting on May 27, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. or at the call of the Mayor.

CARRIED

Steve Soloman, Mayor

Meghan Townsend, CAO/Clerk